
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 

Page 1 - Council Meeting Minutes, September 23, 2019 

DATE  COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, CITY OF WOODBURN, COUNTY OF 
MARION, STATE OF OREGON, SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 

CONVENED   The meeting convened at 7:00 p.m. with Mayor Swenson presiding. 

ROLL CALL 
Mayor Swenson Present 
Councilor Carney Present 
Councilor Cornwell Present 
Councilor Schaub Present 
Councilor Morris Present 
Councilor Ellsworth Present 
Councilor Cabrales Present 

Staff Present: City Administrator Derickson, City Attorney Shields, Police Chief Ferraris, 
Economic Development Director Johnk, Operations Director Stultz, Community 
Development Director Kerr, Deputy Chief Pilcher, Communications Coordinator Moore, City 
Recorder Pierson 

WOODBURN POLICE DEPARTMENT SWEARING-IN CEREMONY 
Woodburn Police Chief Ferraris administered the oath of office to new Woodburn Police 
Officers Josh Mitchell and Josh Rios Noonkester. 

Mayor Swenson called for a 15-minute break. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Woodburn City Council minutes of September 9, 2019,
B. Crime Statistics through August 2019.
Ellsworth/Schaub… adopt the Consent Agenda. The motion passed unanimously.

CATHOLIC COMMUNITY SERVICES FOUNDATION’S REQUEST TO 
IMPLEMENT THE STATE LAW PROCESS FOR A PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION 
FOR NONPROFIT CORPORATIONS PROVIDING LOW-INCOME HOUSING 
City Administrator Derickson provided a staff report. Councilor Carney declared that he has 
an ex-parte contact as he has donates both his time and money to Catholic Charities. Councilor 
Ellsworth stated that she lives next to a Catholic Charities property. Mayor Swenson stated 
that he would call on those who provided speaker cards for this agenda item.  

Josh Graves, Deputy Director of Catholic Community Services, spoke in support of 
implementing the state law process for property tax exemption for nonprofit corporations 
providing low-income housing. He provided information on the types of services provided by 
other similar properties.  

Colm Willis, Marion County Commissioner, spoke in favor of implementing the property tax 
exemption for nonprofits that provide low-income housing. He also provided a reading of the 

1



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 

Page 2 - Council Meeting Minutes, September 23, 2019 

state statute.  He stated that there is a serious shortage of housing in Marion County. 

Teresa Alonso Leon, State Representative to House District 22, spoke in support of 
implementing the property tax exemption for nonprofits that provide low-income housing. 
She noted that there is a lack of affordable housing in Oregon and they should think of those 
living below the poverty line and may be struggling in their homes.  

Jackie Franke, Consultant to Catholic Community Services, spoke in support of implementing 
the property tax exemption for nonprofits that provide low-income housing.  

Michael Martin, stated that his understanding of this is that if this is allowed for this charity it 
will be available to other charities, who would just have to comply with the state statue and 
the City would have no choice but to approve the application. He added that his concern would 
be whether the City would be stuck without the power to disapprove future applications.   

Joe Budge, Woodburn Fire Chief, stated that he is not in support or opposed to this but 
provided information on how the exemption for nonprofits that provide low-income housing 
would affect the services they provide.   

Councilors asked questions and provided comments. Mayor Swenson noted that more 
information will be needed and questions answered before a final decision can be made.  

COUNCIL BILL NO. 3108 – AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AN UPDATED 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN AND ASSOCIATED WOODBURN 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TEXT AMENDMENTS (LA 2018-04)  
Carney introduced Council Bill No. 3108. City Recorder Pierson read the bill twice by title 
only since there were no objections from the Council.  On roll call vote for final passage, the 
bill passed unanimously.  Mayor Swenson declared Council Bill No. 3108 duly passed. 

COUNCIL BILL NO. 3109 – A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION 
FOR- AND ACCEPTANCE OF A DEPARTMENT OF LAND CONSERVATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE GRANT; DEMONSTRATING 
SUPPORT FOR THE GRANT PROJECT; AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO SIGN AND EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO 
THAT EFFECT. 
Carney introduced Council Bill No. 3109. City Recorder Pierson read the bill by title only 
since there were no objections from the Council.  On roll call vote for final passage, the bill 
passed unanimously.  Mayor Swenson declared Council Bill No. 3109 duly passed. 

OPTION TO PURCHASE PROPERTY AT 970 CASCADE DRIVE FUNDED 
THROUGH THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 
PROGRAM  
Carney/Morris… approve the Option to Purchase Real Property Agreement for 970 Cascade 
Drive and authorize the City Administrator to exercise the Option in the event CDBG funding 

2



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 

Page 3 - Council Meeting Minutes, September 23, 2019 

is awarded. The motion passed unanimously.  

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH LOVE INC FOR 
GOVERNANCE OF THE “WOODBURN FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER” FUNDED 
THROUGH THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 
PROGRAM 
Carney/Morris… authorize the City Administration to sign the MOU between the City and 
Love INC for the management of a Woodburn Family Resource Center funded through the 
CDBG program. The motion passed unanimously.   

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF SILVERTON FOR 
BUILDING DIVISION SERVICES 
Ellsworth/Morris… authorize the City Administrator to sign a new Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) with the City of Silverton for building inspection and plan review services. 
The motion passed unanimously.   

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
The City Administrator reported the following: 

• The City is going to be going through an emergency management tabletop exercise.
• The League of Oregon Cities conference will be taking place this week and he will be

heading over on Wednesday.
• The City has been receiving complaints about the hemp odor. He noted that this is an

approved agricultural crop and there isn’t anything the City can do in regards to
regulating the odor.

• Greeters took place at City Hall on September 13 and there was a great turn out.
• Based on feedback from Greeters there has been some talk about the City working

with the Chamber on a business summit to discuss what is going on in Woodburn.
• The City has put out a new recruitment video that includes City employees talking

about why they like working for the City of Woodburn.

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
Councilor Morris mentioned that he received emergency alerts about the cougar sighting. 

Councilor Schaub stated that she looks forward to going to the League of Oregon Cities 
conference.  

Councilor Ellsworth stated that she is also looking forward to the League of Oregon Cities 
Conference.  

Mayor Swenson stated that there have been two Community Center Committee meetings and 
they are going well.  He mentioned that the Boys and Girls Club breakfast is taking place 
September 25.  He added that he was able to speak with three different classrooms about city 

3



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 

Page 4 - Council Meeting Minutes, September 23, 2019 

government. 

ADJOURNMENT 
Morris/Ellsworth… meeting be adjourned.  The motion passed unanimously.  
The meeting adjourned at 9:16 p.m. 

APPROVED
ERIC SWENSON, MAYOR 

ATTEST
               Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
               City of Woodburn, Oregon 

4



5



6



7



COMMUNITY CENTER ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 4, 2019 

 

Page 1  
 

  
  
 

Convened   The meeting convened at 4:30 p.m. in the Woodburn City Hall Council Chambers 
 

 Citizen Advisory Committee Members Present 
Melinda Avila                 Sharyn Cornett 
Jeronimo Gaspar      Rebecca Hayes 
Jenne Marquez                           Karsen O’Bryan 
David Piper                                Daysi Bedolla Sotelo 
Donna Stone                              Michael Vasquez 
Anthony Veliz                           Dylan Wells 
 
Staff Present: City Administrator Derickson, Parks and Recreation Manager Cuomo, Aquatics 
Supervisor Udermann,  

 
 Others Present:   
 Jim Kalvelage, Opsis-PIC 
 Chris Roberts, Opsis-PM/Designer 
 Gary Blackwell, Opsis-PA 
 Ken Ballard, Ballard*King 
 Kurt Lango, Lango Hansen 
 Kyle Trulen, Lango Hansen 
 

 Overview and summary of the Market Analysis report by Ballard*King. Review updates to program 
information and refinements to the concept design options for the building, site and park. 
 
Space Program: 

• The facility program comparison was updated and distributed for review. The spreadsheet 
compares the original program and concept in relationship to the proposed program under 
development. Aspirational program elements have also been added to the list. 
o Base program area is 71,500 sf 
o Add-ons include the new waterslide, recreation pool and Boys & Girls Club total 17,000 

sf. 
• The group discussed the location of the Boys & Girls Club spaces as a logical area that could 

be built as a shelled space for future occupancy without impacting the other functions of the 
community center. 

• Jim Row requested that subsequent program area and area takeoffs in the plans include the 
Boys & Girls Club in the base/proposed program. 

Opsis to include the 1,500 sf. of space for the Boys & Girls Club in the base program total. 
 
 
 
Market Analysis: 

• Ken Ballard presented a summary of the in-depth market analysis for the proposed facility 
program and its location. The discussion focused on the following: 

8



COMMUNITY CENTER ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 4, 2019 

 

Page 2  
 

o The statistical information from demographic analysis indicates the primary service 
area, the City of Woodburn has: 

• Rather small population size. 
• There are many young families. 
• The majority ethnicity of the city population is Hispanic which should be 

considered in programming and sports participation. It was noted Woodburn has 
a strong population of Russian Old Believers. 

• The median household income in Woodburn is low compared to the secondary 
service area, the State of Oregon, and nationally. 

• The SPI (Spending Potential Index) for a variety of recreation activities 
is somewhat low (ranging from the mid-60s to low 70s on scale of 100). 

• The cost of living is lower than other areas of Oregon and national numbers and 
the expenditure for recreation activities are also lower. 

• The youth age groups will continue to grow in population size in the coming 
years. Also, the senior’s age group will see the largest growth in the coming 
years. This should be considered in programming opportunities too. 

• Extending the service area of the facility to a secondary service area is essential. The proposed 
secondary service area extends north towards Aurora, West towards St Paul, and south towards 
Gervais and Mt. Angel. The benefits include: 

o It nearly doubles the population and doubles the number of families served. 
o It increases the median age and the median household income. 
o It increases the SPI ranging from the mid-70s to the low 80s. 

• A list of nearby fitness centers public, non-profit, and private was discussed. 
• The existing Woodburn Aquatics Center already provides a known market presence. 
• Market analysis indicates that the addition to the Woodburn Aquatic Center with cardio/fitness, 

a multi-purpose gym, and other recreation programs will increase the utilization rate of the 
facility, appealing both to those in Woodburn and the secondary service area. 

• Market analysis also indicates a warm recreation pool will serve a broader base of families 
and provide a higher utilization rate for the facility. 

 
Facility Layout: 

• Two options for preliminary concept plans were both presented and well received by committee 
members as the progression of a logical and efficient layout. The program layout is nearly the 
same in each option with some minor variations. Option 1 has Aquatic program functions on 
the east end of the existing Natatorium deck that replace the existing Wading Pool. Option 2 
retains the existing Wading Pool. 

o In both schemes the internal ramps previously shown have been eliminated. Instead the 
the level would be set to match the finish floor of the existing natatorium pool deck. An 
accessible ramp and exterior steps connect to an entry porch on axis with the terminus of 
South 1st Street. 

• In Option 1, program elements shifting west within the footprint of the existing 
Natatorium help locate the building footprint further away from an existing 54” concrete 
storm drain pipe. Opsis noted that the location of the drainpipe is preliminary based 
upon a previous survey. 

• In Option 2, program elements stay outside the footprint of the existing Natatorium and 
preserve the existing Wading Pool. This results in the building footprint being closer 
and slightly overlapping the existing 54” concrete storm drainpipe. 

9



COMMUNITY CENTER ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 4, 2019 

 

Page 3  
 

• The elevator was relocated further north to be more centrally located and in better 
proximity to the stairs. 

Opsis to ask mechanical consultant to review options for Natatorium HVAC units. City of Woodburn to 
have location of existing 54” storm drainpipe verified through a survey. 

 
Natatorium Layout: 

• Both options showed variations of a warm water recreation pool and run-out type water slide 
that would be in an addition to the south of the existing Natatorium. 

o Relocating the water slide to a run-out type slide allows for greater flexibility in 
options and takes advantage of higher space of new structure. It also provides greater 
operational flexibility for use of the existing Competition Pool. 

o Both layouts for the warm water pools shown have the following: a shallow zone with 
zero-entry up to 3.5-foot water depth, an intermediate zone with water depth constant 
at 3.5-foot depth, and a deeper zone with water depth 3.5 foot to 5.0-foot depth. 

o The proposed recreation pool(s) was well received as a warm water amenity that offers 
a variety of activities and features that serves Woodburn’s and the secondary service 
area demographics comprised of young families and seniors 

• Josh Udermann asked about the ability to use the deep-water zone to accommodate group 
exercise programming opportunities. Michael Moreheart of Counsilman-Hunsaker said that 
pool configurations were test fits and that shapes/sizes would be adjusted and refined to meet 
programming requirements. 

• Jim Row asked how the existing and new HVAC units would work to control the 
Natatorium environment. 

o During the discussion Pete Gauthier noted that the existing HVAC unit for the 
Natatorium is approximately 10 years old. 

o Group discussion concluded that the design team should design with a base assumption 
that a second HVAC unit be added to serve the proposed Natatorium addition. 

o An alternate should also be created to describe replacing the existing Natatorium HVAC 
unit and replacing with a unit to serve both the existing and expanded Natatorium spaces. 

Opsis to coordinate with Mechanical design team to explore base and alternate schemes for 
Natatorium HVAC system(s). 

Mechanical system ventilation would need to be designed around open doors if the desire is 
to have the pool deck open to an outdoor deck area. 

 
Site Layout: 

• An Option 3 site plan was presented. 
o This option is like Option 2 in that it has a pedestrian pathway that wraps from the 

north entry to the SW corner of the park. 
o The existing Boys & Girls Club building is preserved. 
o Parking count requirements need to be verified. 
o Option 3 site plan reviewed indicated approximately 207 stalls. 

 126 stalls along S Front Street. 
• 60 stalls adjacent to 1st Street on city owned property. 
• 21 existing stalls on SW corner of Settlemier Park off Settlemier Ave. 
• The existing parking stalls in the southwest corner could be potentially connected 

with a vehicular path to the east stalls along S. Front Street. 
All landscape options were well received by the City and the committee. Although there was a 
strong preference expressed for the curved geometry of Option 2 with the landscaped panhandle 

10



COMMUNITY CENTER ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 4, 2019 

 

Page 4  
 

and pedestrian pathway that connects 1st Street to the park activity field and amenities to the 
south. The design team, City and committee will need to define the scope of site work. 

• Options show pedestrian pathway from the north entry to the SW corner of the park 
• Pathway aligns with Woodburn trail system 
• Move playground to more visible location in park 
• Outdoor basketball adjacent to skate park. Consider adding an additional basketball court 

• Jesse Cuomo commented that locating the playground to a more visible location in park 
is desirable. A centralized location seems more appropriate. 

 
General CAC Notes 

• The Committee appointed members David Piper as Chair of Citizen Advisory Committee 
and Dylan Wells as Vice-Chair of Citizen Advisory Committee. 

• Ken Ballard presented the Market Analysis as summarized in the notes above. Several 
committee members asked questions such as: 

o Is it possible to show the number of multi-family households in Woodburn and 
secondary service area? 

o Is there a map correlating the SPI number with location of households? 
o Is there a trend within the SPI index about participation rates among the variety 

of activities? 
• Several committee members noted that Woodburn has a strong link to soccer and suggested that 

integrating soccer or soccer related programming into this community center seemed 
appropriate. 

• Prior community outreach opportunities were discussed with the committee. 
o Jim Row spoke of a phone survey with registered voters that focused on gathering input 

for programming the community center addition. 
o David Piper spoke of a Parks & Recreation community outreach survey that also focused 

on identifying desired amenities for expanding Woodburn recreation activities. 
o These surveys indicated that cardio/fitness, multi-purpose gym, warm water program 

/ recreation pool, and social/community spaces were the most desirable amenities. 
• The committee also discussed several ideas for financing strategies varying from fundraising 

to seeking a partner (e.g. YMCA, local church, local business partners), and seeking local/state 
funding. 

o Jim Row spoke about the proposed design timeline and initiative to have this facility 
funded through the bond process. The proposed plan is to have a Bond measure in 
place for the November 2020 general election. 

o Ken Ballard explained that most public recreation facilities are funded through the 
bond process. He also explained that many public facilities have a deficit in their 
operations and thus the local government using other funds to subsidize/offset the 
difference. 

o Ken also explained that the financial goal should be to find a balance of recreation and 
community spaces that will attract a broader range of potential users while minimizing 
the subsidy needed to operate the facility. 

o The committee also discussed that this facility is an investment in the Woodburn 
community towards better health of its current and future residents. 

 

• Several committee members also commented that the large Multi-Purpose room should be 
larger suggesting a space that can host at least 250 people during events. 
 

11



COMMUNITY CENTER ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 4, 2019 

 

Page 5  
 

• City of Woodburn does not currently have a community space to accommodate groups 
of this size. 

• Several groups and non-profits currently meet at a conference room within the 
Legacy Medical Group – Woodburn Health Center. There are also several non-profit 
galas held here annually. 

• The committee thought that increasing the size of the large Multi-Purpose 
community room could be a great opportunity for renting space to these groups and 
be a benefit to the larger community. 

• The committee also suggested that Opsis should attend an upcoming “Coffee Hour” meeting 
at the Woodburn Senior Estates to present the community center project. Opsis and Jim Row 
will coordinate with the group to attend a future meeting. 

• In general, the committee is supportive of the development of the community center plans and 
the site landscape options. A few comments to consider going forward: 

o An entry plaza and the main entrance at the end of South 1st Street is good. 
The connection to Settlemier Park is a community benefit. 

o The playground should be in more visible and centralized space. Could the 
playground be a universal access design to be more inclusive for a variety of users? 

o Could fruit trees be integrated in the landscape as a community amenity and 
an opportunity to address food disparities? 

o Could indoor soccer/ futsal programming be integrated in the project? There is 
a shortage of space for playing soccer, especially among younger 
teams/players. 

o The community center should recognize and celebrate local success (e.g. academic 
and athletic achievements w/ soccer championships). The center should also celebrate 
the quality of life and diversity of Woodburn. It should be a facility the community is 
very proud of and serves everyone. 

o Is there a means of making the center more equitable especially among low 
income residents such as farmworkers? 
 

• Next scheduled meetings 
o September 19th TDC and CAC 
o September 25th Public Open House 
o October 14th Woodburn City Council Presentation 

 
 
 

APPROVED _________________________                                                            
                      David Piper, CHAIR 

 
 
ATTEST _________________________                      
               Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
               City of Woodburn, Oregon 

12



                                                                                

 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

1. 5:30pm 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
Position I  Ricardo Rodrigues, Board Secretary (12/22)-Present  
Position II   Alexandra Sanarov Ramirez. Student Member (8/20)-Absent   
Position III  Kasi Pankey, Member (12/21)-Present   
Position IV  Beronica Rios (12/19)-Absent                                       
Position V  Donna Stone, Member (12/21)-Present    
Position VI  Ayanna Zamora, Member (12/20)-Absent   
Position VII   David Piper, Board Chair (12/20)-Present    

  
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Recommended Action:  Approve Recreation & Park Board Minutes from August 14, 
2019 approved unanimously 

 
4. BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

This portion of the agenda allows the public to introduce items for Board 
consideration not already scheduled on the agenda. 

 
5. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Senior Estates Park Path 
- Quote from Knife River  
- Starts at Country Club loops around the horse shoe pitches. 

Paving all that with 8ft. wide asphalt path. 
- End of Sept. / Oct.  
- Path floods close to the horse shoe pits and washes up to 

the path. Will lift up path and put piping underneath to have 
water run under instead of over.  

- Piper- Good to see any improvements and for safety.  
- Pankey- It’ll be nice, for safety for all the people that walk 

through there and drive golf carts over it.  
- Piper- Well used, a lot of people there with mobility issues. 

I think it’s a much needed improvement.  
- Pankey- Heavily used. In-laws live there. 
- Tableting at The Estates on Oct 10th some of this 

information that will be provided at vendor fair. 

City of Woodburn  
Recreation and Park Board 
Minutes 
September 11th, 2019     ●       5:30 p.m. 
 

13



- Piper- Closure?  
- Haven’t gotten that far yet there some detail work might be 

doing it in sections so may not need to close whole park. 
We’ll try to share and give The Estates some information 
about that so they can share that.  

2. Smoking Ordinance 
 

- Brought to councils attention about need/ want from 
community to put in place. 

- Ordinance prohibiting tobacco in city parks. Specific to 
tobacco products Vape, e-cig. Not including chewing 
tobacco only the burning of tobacco. 

- Looked at several different policies across the state and 
ordinances. Council and items settled on and approved by 
Mayor at the tail end of August officially.  

- Working on signage now currently and hoping to get signs 
posted end of September. 

- Allows PD flexibility in enforcement. They can use for 
reinforcement to remove that patron who’s been difficult in 
the past from a park. 

- Ricardo- get it out of there that’s good, we don’t need it.  
- Updating park rule signage to match color and type.  
- General park rules signs 
- Ricardo- A lot of people go to parks and smoke marijuana. 
- Jesse- That is currently illegal. It can be consumed in a 

home but not in a public setting. (Nelson Park) 
- Jesse- Call PD non-emergency line that can be enforced 

currently, smoking can too but haven’t done any posting 
wouldn’t want to enforce that without posting.  

 
6. OLD BUSINESS  

1. Community Center Committee Update 
- Started Community Center Action Team. Had several 

meetings 
- 21 members  
- Open house September 25th @ Aquatic Center. Use fitness 

space for presentations. Also looking at printing boards 
round facility with visuals of what it’s really going to look 
like.  

- Working with Lora media Group sub-contractor of Ovsis to 
produce materials, waiting on stuff there to share material 
with school district to get community feedback.  

- Will also post in usual places Library, Aquatic Center and 
Social Media. 

- Showing the plan blue prints for Woodburn Community 
Center Program. 

14



- Option 1: 
- Alexandra- Is that bottom pool new and the top existing? 
- Jesse- yes, bottom pool is new.  
- Ricardo- That will be cool. 
- Pankey- Looks similar to the Kroc center. Similar concept 

to have community wing and paid wing. 
- Jesse- makes sense in operational stand point cut down on 

staff. Person in lobby can see all the way down hallway.  
- Josh- one of the ideas I think they really talked about in the 

community wing was the flexibility to make spaces to host 
multiple activities with multiple groups of people and being 
able to flex those spaces and use them for multiple things.  

- Park Improvements: 
- Alexandra- That boys and girls club looks awfully small 
- Jesse- it’s about over 1k Sq. ft., it’s a teen sight so not full 

pledged club. 
- Josh- I just want to say how impressed I am with Ovsis so 

far in the in implementing all the things we’ve talked about. 
- Jesse- I would agree they are on top of it.  

 
7. DIVISION REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT 

1. Aquatics 
• Expenses considerably less -12,000 less than 2018. $48,000 last 

month, $60,000 last year quite a bit lower.  
• Revenue up 32,000- 2019, 28,000-2018 up $4,000 up in revenue. 
• Attendance up 12.1% from 2018. 5,611 in 2018. 6,294 in 2019 over 

6k in July and 15-16% August, year record numbers for both 
months.  

• Programs Life Guard class coming up first weekend in Oct. 4, 5 and 
6. Free class for anyone to become a life guard and join team.  

• Issue with woman’s sauna which was original to facility that was put 
in there in 1994. All rusted out and no part for it anymore, working 
with electrician last couple day to finalize installation, Building 
safety cage around it for safety this week.  

• New software: Recdesk cloud based Software Company. Able to 
access off sight. Way more user friendly.  

• Swim Lessons total of 693 for summer similar to last year. Kids in 
group, private, or on our swim team. Swim team starting to 
developed that will be ran in-house. Something that we can control 
price, time, schedule. Practice starting in mid Oct. two 4 month 
seasons, super affordable $95- 4 month hour long practice Monday, 
Wednesday and Friday. Mid Oct only need to have 10-12 kids to 
break even in program. Ages 7-15. 15 and over encouraging to join a 
more competitive team. If 15 or more kids 15 and over that are 
wanting to do swim team, may look at expanding ages. 

15



• New event- Fun Run Series- 3 fun runs April, May and June. Taco 
Tuesday fun run series not sure yet. Make it fun and affordable. 
Bringing more details next time.    

• Team swim lesson series-winter, leading up to life guard class in 
Spring Break time period.  Last time talk about how many kids went 
to life guard class and failed out because they couldn’t swim. Want 
to try to offer affordable swim lessons for $10-$15 for 10 lesson for 
them to become more comfortable and after 4-5 weeks we can use 
that time to recruit them to future life guard class.  

• Pool maintenance closure Nov. 11-15. Closed for 1 week every year 
to do maintenance projects around facility.  

• Video 
 

2. Recreation  
• 278 registered in youth soccer slightly down, 220 with about a week 

to go but had huge up tick.    
• Changed registration process with cap on number of teams, with 

closing date.  
• Close registration and figure out how many teams that makes, 

especially with volunteer coaches. We cap the number on a team. 
Cap the number of team to 12. Don’t want to go past that too much 
to ask for a volunteer coach.  

• Say we have 8 on each team, we order jerseys in larger sizes for 
those age groups. We might eat a little cost of we can’t fill those 
teams but it is very rare that we don’t fill the teams, we might eat 
cost on shirt or something but we actually ended up filling all our 
team with building in the little buffer. Instead of getting calls and 
saying no all the time. We can say we try to build in some flexibility. 
Customer service piece of it works really well, makes them feel like 
we are trying instead of getting automatic no. We’ve been able to 
full program to capacity. 

• Continuing to run into having coaches contact their team, rosters 
email out 1 week prior to coaches meeting to give them more 
opportunity to contact player, it’s been better we feel like it’s been 
better but still getting a lot of parents calling stating they haven’t 
been contacted.  

• Ideas: 
• Piper- group text saying “please respond to me to make sure got 

this”, after a day check who’s responded and who ever didn’t 
respond then make an actual phone call. Communicate with coaches 
if you cannot get a hold of someone contact Parks & Rec. Ask for 
response and try second phone call as follow up. -Email. You need 
to make multiple attempts.  

• Pankey-App sports engine.  
• Kudos to fall coach volunteer group every coach but 1 came to 

meeting and she notified her that she wasn’t coming.  

16



• Men’s league basketball registration been super late on all programs. 
Later than normal. 4 teams signed up day before and finished with 8 
same as last fall. Well see uptake in winter and spring. 

• New cheer coach with 32 participants. Split up into 2 age groups k-3 
and 4-8. Two separate days. Cheering at Woodburn youth football 
games and also at a high school volleyball game. They will be in the 
sitting in the stands with JV and JV2 girls, nowhere on court that is 
safe. They’re going to learn the cheers. 

• Youth volleyball 3-4 team with 12 participants. 5,6,7,8 didn’t fill 
enough people. If we found someone to volunteer we would find the 
gym space. Kelly Carlos reached out and was interested in running 
open gym. St. Luke’s doesn’t have a program right now they’re 
struggling to find a coach. She will be running the open gym at no 
charge, which will be hopefully build up the spring program.  

• Adult Volleyball 5 preregistered saves them few bucks to pre-
register. That program is for us to continually to put it on the books 
and it builds. It is a $5 dollar drop in fee just to cover our staff cost 
for having a staff there is why we have to charge. 

• Adult trips amazing. One trip that doesn’t have participants in it 
Canby Bizarre trip too close and comfortable a drive for most. 
Working on getting second driver for the Zoo trip. Had to cancel 
some road trips in the past, the interest wasn’t there things like that. 
Started advertising in the news and views. Cost is so low because it 
is printing in house and minor cost to put it in the news and views. 
72 participants signed up for fall and still have some openings. 
Trying to get second vehicle for Zoo trip.  

• A lot of people coming in with those flyers with trips circled. 
• Sunday community celebration event. Smaller more intimate. 

Maricela Guerrero community relations manager running the even 4 
vendors, car show, and Mexican consulate will be doing presentation 
and a few other things, baile folklorico and 3 or 4 bands.   

• Fiesta Mexicana over 22,000 people showed up. With line up and 
climate of all the items going on, Gilroy was right before and a lot of 
variable that happened prior to the event and some political climate 
stuff that maybe would of prevented people from coming, but still 
saw almost 23k people it was 22,810 in a 3 day span.  

• Fiesta Video 
 

3. Parks & Facilities 
• Do quarterly walk through with park and maintenance supervisor Jeff 

Crabtree. First one 3 months ago evaluation inventory issues at the 
parks, busy summer didn’t address as many of the larger issues we 
would have liked. Going into winter we should have a little bit more 
down time. Items that we run into deep clean Settlemier restrooms, 
changing lighting higher voltage bulbs, higher lumen bulbs. Still 

17



working on replacing broken barricades at Nelson Park and other parks 
around playground.  

• Youth soccer programs shifted to north soccer field and closed off 
section of south and done some over seeding and will do another round 
of over seeding and fertilizer to get that to bounce back. Working on 
shutting it down for the whole season in hopes to get some decent 
grow in and use it in spring if not we might keep it closed as long as 
need be might have to so alternating field thing. In case you hear any 
complaints about field access and why the fields are closed.  

• As long as everyone understands the reasons why we close it, at the 
end of the day they are the ones that are going to benefit out of it.  

• Only did the section that is bare. Not the whole field. Legend Park gets 
tone of play and continuing to try and fill those things in and hopefully 
maintain it.  

• Bottom line is if we don’t fix it and take care of it, were just going to 
have a dirt field.  

• Working in strategic fashion to still have play in open facilities, its 
either that or you cut way back on amount of play and there is such a 
large need for access to field in the community that we were to cut 
way back it would be really difficult, not just our program just around 
on the board for the use.  

• Library square bathrooms will be library hours only. Due to 
vandalism.  

 
 

8. FUTURE BOARD BUSINESS  
• Wednesday October 9th cancelled due to schedule conflicts. The next Park 

Board meeting will be held October 2,  2019  
 

9. BOARD COMMENTS 
• Based on last meeting getting in touch with Lupe, we will be hosting a Boys 

and Girls club night at one of our home Volleyball matches.  
 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

• 6:35 PM 
 

18



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ______ City Attorney ______ Finance _____ 

  October 14, 2019 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM: James C. Ferraris, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Leasing Specialists LLC Agreement 
  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the City Council, acting as the Local Contract Review Board, authorize a Municipal 
Lease and Option Agreement for the lease of police cars from Leasing Specialists LLC at 
the lease rate of $53,544.00 per year for the next four years ($214,176.00 total contract 
price). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Police Department utilizes a variety of motor vehicles assigned to patrol, traffic, 
investigations and administration to perform its law enforcement functions and 
responsibilities. Police vehicles, both owned and leased, are replaced on a rotation 
schedule to ensure the vehicles are safe, stable and functional to support the Police 
Department’s public safety mission.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Employing the Oregon Cooperative Purchasing Program, which provided established 
competitive price quotes for vehicle leases, the City identified Leasing Specialists LLC. as 
a suitable vendor for leasing police vehicles.  Leasing Specialists LLC. was able to offer 
the vehicle lease to the City at the Oregon State contracted price with a competitive 
lease rate and stipulate to the ability to take delivery and make the first payment after 
the beginning of the 2019/20 fiscal year.  The Police Department will be leasing 4 vehicles 
(2 Ford Explorers and 2 BMW motorcycles) through this program.  The pricing also includes 
all of the necessary equipment for all of the vehicles mentioned.   
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The City will pay a total vehicle lease rate of $53,544.00 per year for the next four years 
($214,176.00 total contract price). The Police Department’s existing FY 19-20 budget as 
authorized by the City Council during the FY 19-20 budget process will cover the annual 
expense.  
 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



Agenda Item 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ______ City Attorney ______ Finance _____ 

October 14, 2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 

THRU: Martin Pilcher, Deputy Chief 

FROM: Andy Shadrin, Lieutenant 

SUBJECT: Liquor License Application  

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Woodburn City Council recommend that OLCC approve the Liquor 
License Application for The Playce (Ausmax2 LLC). 

BACKGROUND: 

Applicant: Brandon Singleterry 
2742 Championship Drive 
Woodburn, OR 97071 
503-984-0423

Point of  
Contact:  Brandon Singleterry 

2742 Championship Drive 
Woodburn, OR 97071 
503-984-0423

Business: The Playce (Ausmax2 LLC) 
2245 Country Club Road 
Woodburn, OR 97071 
503-984-0423

Owners: Brandon Singleterry 

42



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
October 14, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
License Type:  Limited On-Premises - Permits beer, wine, and cider sales and 
consumption on licensed premises.  May sell beer, wine and cider in “growlers” 
for consumption off the licensed premises.  May sell beer kegs for off premises 
consumption.    
 
On September 20, 2019, the Woodburn Police Department received an 
application for Limited On-Premises sales liquor license for The Playce (Ausmax2 
LLC).  The business will operate as a coin operated game center.  The business 
will include a kitchen, small dining area, and gaming area.  There will be seating 
for up to 18 people available and no outside seating.  There are no other forms 
of entertainment listed on the liquor license application. 
 
The Playce is located at 2245 Country Club Road in Woodburn, Oregon 9071.  
The hours of operation are from 1:00 PM to 7:00 PM Monday through Friday.  The 
Woodburn Police Department has not received any communication from the 
public or surrounding businesses in support of or against the proposed change. 
   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Police Department has completed a background investigation on the 
subject listed on the OLCC application, Brandon Singleterry.  Brandon Singleterry 
has no criminal history and is clear in all database checks.  Brandon Singleterry 
has a valid Oregon driver’s license and one failure to obey traffic violation 
conviction from May 2017. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 

43



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ______ City Attorney ______ Finance _____ 

   October 14, 2019 
 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Curtis Stultz, Public Works Operations Director 
  
SUBJECT: Wastewater Treatment Local Limits 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt the attached resolution authorizing Wastewater Treatment Plant 
utilization of amended Local Limits for the Discharge of Pollutants of Concern. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
The City is required by federal law to periodically evaluate the need to 
implement and/or revise Local Limits to discharged pollutants from its 
pretreatment program. As part of the City’s 2010 pretreatment audit, DEQ 
recommended that the City elect to use the 2002 Headwork Loading Limits on an 
interim basis, until new Local Limits could be approved. A technical evaluation of 
local limits has since been conducted that focused on pollutants of concern that 
the wastewater treatment plant is not specifically designed to remove (primarily 
heavy metals like arsenic, chromium, copper, etc.).  
 

The revised Local Limits are prohibited sewage discharge limits, imposed on all 
users of the wastewater treatment plant and collection system. With many of 
the revisions being proposed, the calculations will actually be less stringent 
because the new Wastewater Treatment Plant is more efficient in removing 
pollutants from the wastewater. By using the less stringent limitations, the City 
will be less likely to violate specific water quality standards. Any pollutant 
loading in excess of the limits, decreases the wastewater treatment plant’s 
ability to successfully remove additional loading. 

Wastewater Treatment Plant staff submitted to DEQ the revised Local Limits 
calculations for review in October 2018.  A thirty-day public comment period was 
also required before the local limits could be presented for implementation by the 
City Council.  No comments were received during the comment period.   

  

44



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
September 9, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City of Woodburn developed the amended Local Limits using methods 
provided by DEQ and DEQ has provided a letter conditionally approving the 
revised Local Limits. Per the City’s Sewer Use Ordinance, any modifications or 
amendments to the Local Limits must be implemented by Resolution.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There are no financial implications with approval of the amended Local Limits. 

 

45



Page 1 – COUNCIL BILL NO. 3110               
                RESOLUTION NO. 2142 
 

COUNCIL BILL NO. 3110 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2142 
 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING LOCAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE LIMITS FOR THE DISCHARGE OF 
POLLUTANTS OF CONCERN TO THE PUBLICLY OWNED TREATMENT SYSTEM AND REPEALING 
RESOLUTION NO. 1817 
 
 WHEREAS, Federal regulations 40 CFR § 403.5 requires Publicly Owned Treatment 
Works (“POTWs”) to develop “Local Limits” for the discharge of pollutants of concern to 
the wastewater treatment system; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Oregon State Department of Environmental Quality (“DEQ”) is 
designated as the Approval Authority to regulate POTWs in Oregon and has required 
the City to develop and revise Local Limits for the discharge of pollutants of concern to 
the wastewater treatment system; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has developed revised Local Limits (Exhibit A) using methods 
provided by DEQ; and 
 
 WHEREAS, DEQ has provided a letter conditionally approving the revised Local 
Limits, and the Environmental Protection Agency’s Region 10 office has been provided 
with proper notification by DEQ; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City published all required notices of the proposed changes to the 
Local Limits, kept a public comment period open for at least thirty (30) days, and 
thereafter did not receive any technical challenges to the proposed changes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Sewer Use Ordinance (No. 2556) requires that revisions to Local 
Limits be adopted by resolution of the City Council; NOW THEREFORE,  
  
THE CITY OF WOODBURN RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. The Local Limits described in Exhibit A are hereby adopted. 
 
 Section 2.  The Local Limits described in Exhibit A become effective after 
program modification approval by DEQ.   
 
 Section 3. Resolution No. 1817 is repealed when the Local Limits provided by this 
Resolution become effective.  
 
 
Approved as to form:      
 City Attorney  Date 
 
  
 Approved:   

46



Page 2 – COUNCIL BILL NO. 3110               
                RESOLUTION NO. 2142 
 

  Eric Swenson, Mayor 
 
Passed by the Council   
Submitted to the Mayor   
Approved by the Mayor   
 
Filed in the Office of the Recorder   
 
ATTEST:   
  Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
  City of Woodburn, Oregon 
  

47



Page 3 – COUNCIL BILL NO. 3110               
                RESOLUTION NO. 2142 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CITY OF WOODBURN LOCAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE LIMITS 
 

 
 

Pollutant 
 

Unit 
 

Limit 
 

Arsenic mg/L 0.09 
Cadmium mg/L 0.24 
Chromium mg/L 7.13 
Copper mg/L 1.75 
Cyanide mg/L 0.16 
Lead mg/L 0.52 
Mercury mg/L 0.01 
Molybdenum mg/L 0.47 
Nickel mg/L 2.12 
Selenium mg/L 0.30 
Silver mg/L 0.07 
Zinc mg/L 1.17 
Oil and Grease mg/L 100 
pH SU 5.5 – 10.0 

 

48



Agenda Item 
 

 

 
 

 October 14, 2019 
 

 
TO:              Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Chris Kerr, Community Development Director  
 Colin Cortes, AICP, CNU-A, Senior Planner     
 
SUBJECT: Call-Up Briefing:  Planning Commission Approval of Conditional Use, 

Design Review, Street Exception, and Variance Applications for Nellie 
Muir Elementary School at 1800 W. Hayes St (CU 2019-05, DR 2019-07, 
EXCP 2019-03, & VAR 2019-05) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends no action and briefs the Council on this item pursuant to 
Woodburn Development Ordinance (WDO) Section 4.02.02.  The Council may 
call up this item for review if desired and, by majority vote, initiate a review of 
this decision.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on September 26, 2019 and 
unanimously approved the Conditional Use, Design Review, Street Exception, 
and Variance (Type III) with the conditions recommended by staff through the 
staff report published September 19, addendum 102A “Public Works Comments 
September 16, 2019”, and addendum 2 (corrected analysis and finding text for 
WDO 3.04.05 Traffic Impact Analysis) –  except that the Commission modified 
select conditions per the applicant’s testimony submitted the date of the 
hearing as a memo, “Requested Modifications to Conditions of Approval for 
Nellie Muir Elementary School Improvements”. 
 
The modified conditions: 

• Defer right-of-way (ROW) and public utility easement (PUE) dedications 
and construction of street improvements until building permit final 
inspection, which is essentially the same time as certificate of occupancy 
(C of O), later than building permit issuance as the recommended 
conditions had stated.  Deferral includes constructing 6-foot sidewalk 
along the eastern third of the W. Hayes Street frontage where none exists 

49

https://www.woodburn-or.gov/dev-planning/page/woodburn-development-ordinance-wdo


 

Page 2 of 2 

presently instead of new 8-foot sidewalk along the whole frontage. 
(Conditions C1a, C9, D1, and EX2a & bi) 
 

• Lessen the number of site east perimeter trees along where Killian Spring 
Parkway will be. (C1c) 
 

• Have 8 bicycle parking stalls at the new main entrance instead of 12 stalls. 
(C2b) 
 

• Allow parking area light poles to be up to 25 feet (ft) high instead of 18 ft 
and other pole and wall-mounted lights respectively to be 15 and 18 ft 
high instead of 10 ft. (C7b) 

 
No parties testified in opposition to the proposal. 
 
The proposal by Woodburn School District 103 is about partial site 
redevelopment including building addition/expansion, removal of the existing 
parking area and at least three modular buildings, and addition of a new 
northwest front visitor parking area and a south rear staff parking area at Nellie 
Muir Elementary School (E.S.) on Tax Lot 052W12DD 06300 in the Public and Semi-
Public (P/SP) zoning district. 

50


	Council Meeting Minutes September 23, 2019
	PC Minutes (signed) 8-8-2019
	CAC Minutes September 4 2019
	Market Analysis:
	Facility Layout:
	Natatorium Layout:
	Site Layout:

	Minutes - September 2019
	Auto Lease Staff Report October 14 2019
	Lease 2901 Docs
	Building Activity - Sept. 2019
	Liquor License-- The Playce
	AGENDA ITEM - October 14 2019 WWTP Local Limits
	FROM: Curtis Stultz, Public Works Operations Director
	URECOMMENDATIONU:
	UBACKGROUNDU:
	UDISCUSSIONU:
	UFINANCIAL IMPACTU:

	City Council Agenda Item call-up briefing - CU 2019-05 final



